
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, August 7, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

918-338-4282 
 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Copeland. 

 
2. Roll call and establishment of a quorum. 

 
3. The invocation will be provided by Jason Elmore, Pastor Friday Nite Church/President 

Bartlesville Ministerial Association 
 

4. Citizens to be heard. 
 

5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
 

6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  
• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Library Trust Authority 
• Two upcoming openings on the Board of Adjustment 
• One upcoming opening on the Park Board 
• One opening on the Street and Traffic Committee 

 
7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of July 3, 2023. 
ii. The Special Meeting Minutes of June 24, 2023. 

 
b. Approval or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, 

and Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Jennifer Galvin to a three-year term on the Park Board at the 

recommendation of Vice Mayor Curd. 
ii. Appointment of Mr. Mark Cough to a three-year term on the Bartlesville Library Trust 

Authority at the recommendation of Councilman Roszel. 
iii. Appointment of Ms. Donna Keffer as the Price Tower Representative to a three-year 

term on the Community Center Trust Authority’s Tower Center at Unity Square 
Management Committee at the recommendation of Vice Mayor Curd. 

 
c. Approval of Resolutions 

i. Amending the budget for the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2022-23, 
appropriating unanticipated revenue for the Health Insurance Fund. 

 



 
 
 
 d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters and Change Orders 

  i. Airport Hangar Lease Agreement for the Bartlesville Municipal Airport between the 
City of Bartlesville and Dennis Devries in the amount of $250.00 per month. 

  ii. Magazine/Newspaper Subscription Service Proposal between Rivistas Subscription 
Service and the Bartlesville Public Library/City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024. 

  iii.  Agreement with Indian Nation Council of Governments (INCOG) for mapping and 
GIS support, Community Development Grant Writing Assistance, INCOG Events, 
and other benefits and outcomes, in the amount of $18,500.00. 

iv. Amended Development Agreement between The Voice of the Martyrs, Inc. and the 
City of Bartlesville relating to future development and the Final Plat of Voice of the 
Martyrs, an addition to the City of Bartlesville, being a part of Section 22, Township 
26 North, Range 13 East, Washington County, Oklahoma.  

v. Janitorial Contracts between the City of Bartlesville and Oklahoma’s Best Cleaning 
Service LLC for cleaning services provided to the Bartlesville Public Library and City 
Hall in the amount of $2475.00 per month, per facility. 

. 
 e.  Bartlesville NEXT Report  
  i.   Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – August 2023. 
 
 f. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for the twelve months ending June 30, 2023.  
 
 g. Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2023-2024-003 for Asphalt Rehabilitation Delaware Avenue and Clear Creek 

Loop 
     

8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-003 for Asphalt 
Rehabilitation Delaware Avenue and Clear Creek Loop. Presented by Councilmember 
Roane.  

9. Discuss and take possible action to approve the Collective Bargaining Agreement 
between the City of Bartlesville and International Association of Firefighters Local 200 
(the “IAFF”) for Fiscal Year 2023-2024. Presented by Jess Kane, City Attorney. 
 

10. Discuss and take possible action on a request from the Washington County Soccer 
Club to name the soccer fields at Robinwood Park: “Joe Bares Soccer Complex”. 
Presented by Larry R. Curtis, Director, Community Development. 

 
11. Discuss and take possible action on a request from the Bartlesville Planning 

Commission to appoint two City Council members and a citizen to the Planning 
Commission Comprehensive Plan Committee. Presented by Larry R. Curtis, Director, 
Community Development. 

 
12. New Business. 

 
13. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
14. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

 



 
 
 

15. Adjournment. 
 

The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent 
public view at City Hall at 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, August 3, 2023. 
 
   

Jason Muninger    /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO    by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Sparklight: Channel 56 
  
All discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council.  Agenda items requiring a public hearing as required by law 
will be so noted. The City Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of Bartlesville 
encourages participation from all its citizens.  If participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to 
the City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations.  The 
City may waive this rule if signing is not the necessary accommodation.  

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
Monday, July 3, 2023 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr. 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
MINUTES 

(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2022 
and the Agenda was posted June 29, 2023 at 5:00 p.m.)  

 
Present were Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Councilmembers Trevor Dorsey, Billie Roane, and Loren 
Roszel. Mayor Dale Copeland was absent. 
 
City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney (via phone); Jason 
Muninger, City Clerk/CFO; Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water Utilities; Micah Siemers, Director of 
Engineering; Laura Sanders, Director of Human Resources, Chief Communications Officer; 
Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; Fire Chief David Topping; Police Chief Kevin 
Ickleberry, Security; and Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order at 5:33 p.m. 

by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 

2.  Roll Call was held and a quorum established. 
 

3. The Invocation will be provided by Pastor Pam Crawford, Good Shepherd Presbyterian 
Church.         

 
4. Citizens to be heard. 

 
There were no citizens to be heard. 

 
5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

 
6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• Two openings on the Bartlesville Library Trust Authority 
• Two upcoming openings on the Board of Adjustment 
• Two upcoming openings on the Park Board 
• One opening on the Street and Traffic Committee 

 
Vice Mayor Curd read the openings and encouraged citizens to volunteer on City 
Committees. Applications can be found at www.cityofbartlesville.org or at City Hall in the City 
Manager’s Office. 

 
 

Agenda Item 7.a.i.

http://www.cityofbartlesville.org/


 
 
 

7. Consent Docket 
a. Approval of Minutes 

i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of June 5, 2023. 
ii. The Special Meeting Minutes of June 22, 2023. 

 
b. Approval or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, 

and Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Mary Beth Washington to fill an unexpired term on the White 

Rose Cemetery Board at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
 

c. Approval of Resolutions 
i. Amend the contracts of the City Attorney, City Judge, City Manager and Golf 

Professional adjusting their compensation to accommodate the approved cost of 
living adjustments and merit increases for Fiscal Year 23-24. 

ii. Amending the Budget of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024, appropriating unbudgeted fund balance for the Golf Course Memorial Fund. 

iii. Amending the Budget for the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024, appropriating unanticipated fund balance for the CIP Sales Tax Fund. 

 
 d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters and Change Orders 

  i. Engagement between Crawford and Associates P.C. and the City of Bartlesville for 
audit consulting services. 

  ii. Lease Agreement between Friends of the Kiddie Park and the City of Bartlesville for 
expansion of Kiddie Park. 

  iii.  Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Bartlesville Fire Department and 
the Cherokee Nation required to receive a grant from the Cherokee Nation to 
purchase fire gear and rope rescue equipment in the amount of $48,423.91. 

iv.  Design Contract with Heckenkemper Golf Course Design for master planning 
services for Adams Municipal Golf Course in the amount of $39,500.00. 

  v.  Application and Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Bartlesville Area 
Habitat for Humanity, Inc. to forgive liens in the amount of $6,601.74 on property 
located at 1540 SW Maple Avenue. 

 
 e. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for the eleven months ending May 31, 2023.  
 
 f. Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2023-2024-001 Water and Wastewater Line Repair Materials 
  ii. Bid No. 2023-2024-002 Water Treatment Chemicals 
 
 Vice Mayor Curd read the consent docket in its entirety. Ms. Roane pulled Items 7.bi., 7.d.ii. 

and 7.d.iii. for further discussion. Mr. Roszel pulled Item 7.d.iv. for further discussion. 
 
 Ms. Roane moved to approve the consent docket as presented, with the exception of Items 

7.b.i, 7.d.ii, iii and iv, seconded by Mr. Roszel. 
 

Voting Aye: Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd,  
Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 

  



 
 
 
 7.b.i. Approval or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, 

Commissions, and Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Mary Beth Washington to fill an unexpired term on the 

White Rose Cemetery Board at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
 
Ms. Roane stated her appreciation of Ms. Washington for volunteering, 
and encouraged others to apply to serve on the City’s committees. 

 
 7.d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters and Change 

Orders 
   

  ii. Lease Agreement between Friends of the Kiddie Park and the City of 
Bartlesville for expansion of Kiddie Park. 

    
   Ms. Roane provided the history of the Kiddie Park and appreciated all that 

the Park and its staff do for the community. Discussion covered City funds 
provided last year for improvements; how the lease agreement expands 
the property in order to provide additional rides, and utilities that may need 
to be considered in the expansion. 

 
  iii.   Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Bartlesville Fire 

Department and the Cherokee Nation required to receive a grant from the 
Cherokee Nation to purchase fire gear and rope rescue equipment in the 
amount of $48,423.91. 

 
   Ms. Roane shared her appreciation of the Cherokee Nation, as did Mr. 

Roszel and Vice Mayor Curd.    
 
  iv.   Design Contract with Heckenkemper Golf Course Design for master 

planning services for Adams Municipal Golf Course in the amount of 
$39,500.00. 

 
    Mr. Roszel inquired and staff discussed the timing of obtaining the design 

now in order for work to begin next year; how the $39,500 is specifically 
for the design; how a master plan is obtained for all City’s facilities when 
developing or when renovating; and how most construction works from a 
master plan. Mr. Roszel added that he recognized a lot of work is needed 
on the facility. Mr. Bailey added that the last golf course masterplan the 
City used was dated back to 1999. Vice Mayor Curd added that the golf 
course brings a lot of money into Bartlesville and for not-for-profit 
fundraisers. 

  
 Mr. Roszel moved to approve Items 7.b.i, 7.d.ii., iii. and iv. as presented, seconded by Ms. 

Roane. 
 

Voting Aye: Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Vice Mayor Curd 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
 



 
 
 

8. Discuss and take action to approve an Ordinance of the Council of the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma, authorizing the calling and holding of a special election in the 
City of Bartlesville, State of Oklahoma (the “City”), on the 10th day of October, 2023, for 
the purpose of submitting to the registered qualified electors of said City the question of 
the issuance of General Obligation Bonds of said City in an amount not to exceed the 
sum of Seventeen Million Six Hundred Thousand Dollars ($17,600,000) to be issued in 
series to provide funds for the purposes of: (i) acquiring, constructing, expanding, 
renovating, repairing, and/or equipping public safety buildings, facilities, and equipment, 
all to be owned exclusively by the City, (ii) acquiring, constructing, expanding, 
renovating, repairing, and/or equipping municipal buildings, facilities, and equipment, all 
to be owned exclusively by the City; (iii) constructing, reconstructing, repairing, 
improving, and rehabilitating existing streets, roads, bridges, and intersections in the 
City (including lighting, sidewalks/bikepaths, landscaping, related drainage 
improvements, driveway reconstruction, and other related improvements); and (iv) 
constructing, expanding, repairing, which may also include improving, renovating, 
acquiring and equipping parks and recreational facilities, all to be owned exclusively by 
the City; all to be completed with or without the use of other funds, and levying and 
collecting an annual tax, in addition to all other taxes, upon all the taxable property in 
said City for the payment of the interest and principal on said Bonds; providing for 
election procedures; authorizing professional services agreements pertaining to the 
issuance of said Bonds; declaring an emergency; and containing other provisions 
related thereto. 

Mr. Bailey opened reporting that the projects included in the proposed ordinance was selected 
by the City Council in previous meetings, and was then provided to Mr. Nate Ellis, attorney with 
The Public Finance Law, LLC to prepare the official documents for approval. Mr. Ellis reviewed 
the Ordinance and Proclamation of Special Election and Notice.  

A brief discussion was held on the four propositions that citizens will be asked to vote on at the 
October 10, 2023 election; the meaning behind declaring an emergency which essentially 
allows the Ordinance to become effective immediately instead of one day after publication in the 
local newspaper; how the emergency declaration allows the processing of the documents 
immediately with the Election Board; terms of the bonds and how they are determined; and that 
this election will not impose additional taxes by keeping the mil levy at 15. Vice Mayor Curd 
stated his appreciation to the citizens who have supported GO Bond elections over the years. 

 Mr. Dorsey moved to adopt the Ordinance as presented, seconded by Ms. Roane. 
 

 Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Vice Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay:  None 
 Motion:  Passed 

 
9. Discuss and take possible action to declare an emergency to enact the proposed 

Ordinance as set out above in Item 8. of this agenda. 

See discussion above for the need for the emergency clause. 

Mr. Roszel moved to declare an emergency to immediately enact the adopted Ordinance in 
Item 8. as presented, seconded by Ms. Roane. 

 



 
 
 

 Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay:  None 
 Motion:  Passed 

 
10. Discuss and take possible action on a recommendation by the Bartlesville 

Development Authority for development assistance of $40,800 to Bob Loftis Furniture 
of Bartlesville to be utilized for building improvements at 4125 Nowata Road, 
Bartlesville, OK, payable upon Certificate of Occupancy within 24 months. Presented 
by Chris Batchelder, Bartlesville Development Authority. 

 
Mr. Batchelder opened with first thanking Ken Johnson for everything he is doing to improve 
the Kiddie Park.  
 
Using a PowerPoint, Mr. Batchelder reported that  Bob Loftis Furniture is expanding to a new 
location for their furniture sales in Bartlesville. Sleep and recliner sales will continue to be 
located at the Highway 75 location between Chili’s and Freddy’s. The new furniture location 
will be the old Examiner-Enterprise building located at 4125 Nowata Road. They expect to be 
opened this July. This incentive funding will provide critical financial assistance to fund the 
purchase of an inventory rack system and lighting for the new location that will help make 
their opening possible.  Based on sales numbers from both the mattress and recliner 
business, as well as previous full sales numbers at their prior location (less recliner and 
sleep), an annualized pro-forma was provided for incentive calculation as follows: 
  
Average annual sales: $1,200,000  
80% discount for non-targeted brand: $240,000  
Annual sales tax revenue based on 3.4% tax rate: 
$8,160 Total 10-year tax revenue: $81,600  
Max incentive per 50% incentive cap: $40,800  
 
A brief discussion followed covering the requirements for certificate of occupancy; the recent 
incentivization for Neals Furniture and how both companies will provide more options to the 
citizens; and how incentives are available to local companies as well as outside 
companies/chains. 

 Mr. Dorsey moved to approve the recommendation by the Bartlesville Development Authority 
for development assistance of $40,800 to Bob Loftis Furniture as presented, seconded by 
Mr. Roszel. 

 
 Voting Aye:  Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Vice Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay:  None 
 Motion:  Passed 

 
11. Discuss and take possible action on a recommendation by the Bartlesville 

Development Authority for development assistance of $53,366 to WrightSteak 
Steakhouse to be utilized for building improvements at the Price Tower located at 510 
Dewey Ave, Bartlesville, OK, payable upon Certificate of Occupancy within 24 
months.” Presented by Chris Batchelder, Bartlesville Development Authority. 

 



 
 
 

Mr. Batchelder, using a PowerPoint, reported that the WrightSteak Steakhouse will be part of 
a complete reimaging of the Price Tower. It will be a high-end, high-ticket steakhouse on the 
15th and 16th floors, that will be a draw to the community as well as a destination event 
location for locals and visitors. He provided the projected sales numbers provided from the 
previous restaurant tenants, as well as industry sales climate, annualized pro-forma that 
provides for incentive calculation as follow: 
 
Average annual sales: $1,569,576  
80% discount for non-targeted brand: $313,915  
Annual sales tax revenue based on 3.4% tax rate: $10,673  
Total 10-year tax revenue: $106,731  
Max incentive per 50% incentive cap: $53,366 

 
A brief discussion followed covering how the $1.5 million in annual sales was determined (received 
from an industry expert, Anthem Blanchard); how this steakhouse will be unique to our community 
and will be high-end food and service; how the incentive amount is comfortable; how the Blanchard’s 
and Mr. French (who were in attendance) have provided a proforma which is a good predictor of 
sales. 
 
Ms. Roane moved to approve the recommendation by the Bartlesville Development Authority 
for development assistance of $53.366 to WrightSteak Steakhouse as presented, seconded 
by Mr. Dorsey. 

 
 Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Vice Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay:  None 
 Motion:  Passed 
 

12. Discuss and take possible action on a recommendation by the Bartlesville 
Development Authority for development assistance of $34,729 to LOVE66 Café 
Restaurant of Bartlesville to be utilized for building improvements at the Price Tower 
located at 510 Dewey Ave, Bartlesville, OK, payable upon Certificate of Occupancy 
within 24 months.” Presented by Chris Batchelder, Bartlesville Development Authority. 

 
Using a PowerPoint, Mr. Batchelder reported the Love 66 Café Restaurant will be located on 
the 1st floor of the Price Tower. It is currently being re-envisioned and will be a daily, lunch-
type concept. The Route 66/diner décor will be used, and will be a great addition to our 
community. It will be operated as a separate business from WrightSteak Steakhouse, 
therefore the incentives are set apart separately. 
 
Discussion covered that both incentives were for two different companies; and how exciting 
both will be as an addition to the Price Tower.  
 
Mr. Dorsey moved to approve the recommendation by the Bartlesville Development Authority 
for development assistance of $34,729 to LOVE66 Cafe Restaurant of Bartlesville as 
presented, seconded by Ms. Roane. 

 
 Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay:  None 
 Motion:  Passed 



 
 
 

 
 

13. Discuss and take possible action appointing two City Council members as ex-officio 
members to the Bartlesville Convention & Visitors Bureau (Visitors, Inc.) Board of 
Directors. Presented by Vice Mayor Curd. 

 
Mr. Roszel and Mr. Dorsey each expressed how they would be honored to be appointed to 
the Bartlesville Convention & Visitors Bureau Board of Directors. 
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to appoint Councilmembers Dorsey and Roszel to serve as ex-
officio members of the Bartlesville Convention & Visitors Bureau as presented, seconded by 
Ms. Roane. 
 

 Voting Aye:  Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Vice Mayor Curd 
 Voting Nay:  None 
 Motion:  Passed 

 
14. New Business. 

 
There was no new business. 

 
15. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
Mr. Bailey provided information on trash service changes due to the July 4th holiday. Tuesday 
trash service will be conducted on Wednesday, July 5. 
 
Business licenses need to be renewed throughout the month of July. After July 1st, a late 
penalty will be required. 
 
Mr. Bailey asked Mr. Lauritsen to provide a water supply update. Mr. Lauritsen, using a 
PowerPoint, provided drought information currently being experienced in Kansas and parts of 
Oklahoma. Where Bartlesville’s watershed is located near Sedan and Cedar Vale Kansas, 
there is a designation of an exceptional drought. At this time the combined water supply is at 
57%. He provided Mesonet Data on precipitation, which is 10” short of what is normally 
received. He then reviewed a Projected Water Supply Chart showing that Stage 4 may occur 
sometime during August using these projections. He also provided a chart of monthly 
consumption which is averaging below 5 million gallons a day when normally during this time 
of the year, 6 to 7 million gallons are used. Capturing rain water or water runoff to use for 
plants and yards is encouraged, and rain barrels are not illegal. If storing water becomes a 
mosquito issue, contact the City for treatment options. 
 
Discussion covered that the Caney River is being used as the primary water source at this 
time; the amount of water being released from Hulah and Copan lakes by the Corp daily; how  
emergency measures are being considered and researched, such as waste water reuse that 
could produce 4 million gallons per day; and how conversations have already begun with 
legislators to get waste water reuse permitting approved expeditiously. Other resources 
include researching an aquafer in Osage County, water access from Skiatook and Birch 
lakes, and possibly Tulsa, in the event of extreme water supply shortage. Mr. Bailey 
expressed that no one will go without water; how there will be water through next summer at 
the current rate of supply and demand; and how waste water reuse could extend water 



 
 
 

supply past next summer. He added that the City has a plan and research has already begun 
on all options. The Water Resource Committee will be reinstated to assist with all of this 
information, and getting a working plan in place. Staff feels that diversifying the City’s water 
supply is necessary, which was also encouraged by the Corps. Public discussion has not 
been held until now due to all options being researched. Recommendations by the Water 
Resource Committee will be brought before the City Council for approval. Mr. Bailey 
continued reporting that loans are available through the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, 
as well as grants in order to purchase options for additional supply. The City is also 
continuing to work with the Army Corps to obtain Copan water rights. Vice Mayor Curd 
commented on how well the citizens are conserving, and how important it is to conserve now 
to extend the water supply as long as possible. The Corps releases only the state mandated 
amount each day which maintains water quality.  
 
Vice Mayor Curd encouraged everyone to subscribe to City Beat where up-to-date 
information on the drought, water supply and other pertinent information is available. Mr. 
Roszel stated his support and respect of Mr. Lauritsen who has taken much heat on the 
water situation, how he continues to consistently provide current information and to look for 
additional water supply options. 

 
16. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

 
There were no City Council comments or inquiries. 
 

17. There being no further business to address, Vice Mayor Curd adjourned the meeting at 
7:07 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

                                                       
Vice Mayor, Jim Curd, Jr. 

 
 
 
 
                                                               
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE  

 SPECIAL MEETING  
OF THE  

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Monday, July 24, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

 
Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr. 

918-338-4282 
 

Council Chambers at City Hall 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting and the Agenda was posted June 20, 2023 at 3:45 p.m.)  

 
Present were Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr. and Councilmembers Trevor Dorsey (arriving at 5:41 p.m.), 
Billie Roane and Loren Roszel. Absent was Mayor Dale Copeland. 
 
City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Tracy Roles, Assistant City Manager; Jess Kane, 
City Attorney(via phone); Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk; Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water 
Utilities; and Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Vice Mayor 

Curd at 5:30 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call was conducted and a quorum established. 
 

3. The invocation was provided by Quinn Schipper. 
 

4. Citizens to be heard. 
 
There were no citizens to be heard. 
 

5. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-001 for water and 
wastewater line repair materials. Presented by Councilmember Roszel. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to award Bid No. 2023-2024-001 to the vendor who submitted the low bid 
meeting specifications which are highlighted in the attached bid tabulations, seconded by Ms. 
Roane. 
 
Ayes:  Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Vice Mayor Curd 
Nays:  None 
Motion: Passed 
 

6. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-002 for water treatment 
chemicals. Presented by Councilmember Roszel. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to award Bid No. 2023-2024-002 to the vendor who submitted the low bid 
meeting specifications which are highlighted in the attached bid tabulations, seconded by Ms. 
Roane. 
 

Agenda Item 7.a.ii.



 
 
 

Ayes:  Ms. Roane, Mr. Roszel, Vice Mayor Curd 
Nays:  None 
Motion: Passed 
 

7. Update on the City of Bartlesville Water Supply. Presented by Terry Lauritsen, Director 
of Water Utilities. (Councilmember Dorsey arrived during the presentation of this item.) 
 
Mr. Lauritsen reported that the watershed and surrounding area received beneficial rainfall over 
a week ago. Using a PowerPoint, he reported on the Bartlesville water service area; raw water 
supply and locations; overall water supply that is currently at 76%; watershed locations; the 
Kansas Mesonet showing drought conditions; how Copan is still low due to lack of rain runoff to 
it; and water supply projection since supply is still considered low. Mr. Muninger reported on the 
effect of the emergency rates on revenue. He stated that the total additional amount collected 
was $32,795, with commercial accounts bringing in $25,696, and residential customers $7,099. 
Comparisons from last year show a $150,000 reduction in revenue due to conservation.  A brief 
discussion covered the average increase on commercial and residential meters; how citizens 
stepped up conservation; and how monitoring will continue.  
 

8. Discuss and take possible action to approve a Resolution repealing Emergency Water 
Rates established by Resolution 3670. Presented by Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water 
Utilities. 

 
Mr. Lauritsen reported that on April 3, 2023, Council approved amendments to the Water 
Shortage Ordinance (3569) and a Resolution implementing the Stage 2 Emergency Water Rates 
(3669). Water supply levels continued to decline in April and fell below 60% the week of April 
17, which triggered the Stage 3 restrictions. The Stage 3 Emergency Water Rates (3670) were 
approved by Council on May 15, 2023. Water supply hovered between 56% and 58% in May, 
June and early July. Rains on July 14 & 15 had a significant impact on the water supply. Prior to 
the rain on July 14, water supply was 57.1%. After the rains, water supply rose to 66.2% on July 
15, 72.1% on July 17 and as of July 19, water supply is 73.5% with inflow still coming into Hulah 
Lake. Per the Water Shortage Ordinance, there are no restrictions or emergency water rates 
when water supply is between 70% to 79%, only advisories and voluntary conservation. Thus, 
staff is requesting that Council repeal Resolution 3670, which enacted the Stage 3 emergency 
water rate adjustment, and return to the normal volumetric rates. If approved, the repeal of the 
emergency water rates will be retroactive to July 17. 
 
Ms. Roane moved to approve the Resolution repealing Emergency Water Rates established by 
Resolution 3670 which will be retroactive to July 17, 2023, seconded by Mr. Roszel. 
 
Mr. Roszel stated his appreciation to City Staff and the YMCA for getting Frontier Pool and the 
splash pads open. 
 
Ayes:  Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Vice Mayor Curd 
Nays:  None 
Motion: Passed 
 

9. Discuss and take possible action re-establishing the Bartlesville Water Resources 
Committee; setting terms of office for committee members’ declaring the process for 
selection and appointment of Committee members; setting responsibilities of the 
Committee; and appointing Initial Committee Members. Presented by Mike Bailey, City 
Manager. 



 
 
 

 
Mr. Bailey reported that prior to and during the recent drought, he had been in discussion with 
his staff analyzing different options to strengthen Bartlesville’s water supply options. Staff felt 
that re-establishing the Bartlesville Water Resources Committee was the best place to begin 
researching and investigating options. Due to the recent rainfall, the situation is not as urgent, 
although continues to be extremely important. The Committee has not met in many years and 
due to many of the former members no longer able to serve due to a variety of reasons, a new 
roster was developed with a few changes from the original. Mr. Bailey read who the Committee 
will consist of and that term limits will be unlimited three-year terms. The Committee will be 
tasked with studying and identifying a supplemental water source sufficient to address the City’s 
immediate needs during the current water shortage; review the City’s current drought plan and 
make recommendations for changes; study and identify supplemental water sources sufficient 
to ensure water security to meet the City’s long-term needs; and to make recommendations to 
the City Council related to all previous tasks. Mr. Bailey read the proposed appointees as follows: 
Dale Copeland, Mayor; Billie Roane, City Councilmember; Mike Bailey, City Manager, George 
Halkiades, Ward 1 Representative; Bill Dausses, Ward 2 Representative; Tom Gorman, Ward 3 
Representative; Quinn Schipper, Ward 4 Representative; Harvey Little, Ward 5 Representative, 
Kevin Trease, Dewey Resident; Mike Dunlap, Washington County Commissioner; David Wood, 
Bartlesville Development Authority; Sherri Wilt, Bartlesville Regional Chamber of Commerce; 
Mack Savala, Senator Lankford’s office (ex officio); Crystal Campbell, Senator Mullin’s office (ex 
officio); Derrick Sisney, Representative Brecheen’s office (ex officio); Julie Daniels, Legislative 
Liaison (ex officio) and Terry Lauritsen, Water Utilities Director (ex officio). This Resolution will 
repeal conflicting resolutions including Resolutions 2872, 3009, 3012 and 3173. Mayor 
Copeland, Tom Gorman, David Wood and Julie Daniels also served on the original committee.  
 
A brief discussion covered a suggestion that the Resolution be amended in the membership 
portion from “A resident of Washington County’ to “A Washington County Commissioner”; how 
Commissioner Dunlap expressed his desire to represent Washington County when approached 
about the Committee; and how each person was chosen either from a recommendation from a 
Councilmember, from City staff, or a head of the various organizations. Vice Mayor Curd affirmed 
each appointment saying each proposed appointment are well qualified to serve on this 
committee. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to approve the Resolution re-establishing the Bartlesville Water Resources 
Committee including each appointment, and the Washington County Commissioner 
modification, seconded by Ms. Roane. 
 
Mr. Bailey added that the original committee held a position for an Osage County Representative 
because a possible water supply in the early 2000’s was located in Osage County. That is no 
longer an option, therefore an Osage County Representative is not necessary. 
 
Ayes:  Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd 
Nays:  Passed 
Motion: Passed 
 

10. City Manager and Staff Reports. 
 
Mr. Bailey encouraged citizens to participate in completing the Sidewalk Survey which can be 
found on the City’s website. 
 



 
 
 

He also reported that Frontier Pool is now open to the public. Mr. Bailey expressed his 
appreciation to YMCA and the City staff to getting the pool in short-time. City Ride had already 
provided and will continue to provide shuttle rides to Osage Hill State Park Swimming Pool on 
Tuesdays and Thursdays. The cost for both pools are the same. Ms. Roane encouraged citizens 
to sign up for City Beat as it contains information covering pool information, as well as other City 
related issues. Children under 12 must be accompanied by a guardian to use the shuttle. Mr. 
Bailey also stated his appreciation of City Ride who stepped up and did not require any charge 
from citizens or the City for the shuttle to Osage Hills. 
 

11. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
Mr. Roszel stated how the citizens did a great job during the water shortage, and on how the 
community came together during this time. Vice Mayor concurred. Ms. Roane appreciated the 
local media also. 
 

12. There being no further business to address, Vice Mayor Curd adjourned the meeting at 
6:24 p.m. 

 
 
 

                                                            
Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor 

 
 
                                                           
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 

 



7.b.i.





7.b.ii.







Agenda Item 7.b.iii.





Agenda Item ___ 
July 19, 2023 

Prepared by Jason Muninger. CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

A resolution amending the budget for the City of Bartlesville. Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 
2022-23, appropriating unanticipated revenue for the Health Insurance Fund.

Attachments:

Health Insurance Fund Unanticipated Revenue Resolution 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

The City received $499,608 more revenue then was budgeted. This was comprised of 
several sources, Interest, stop-loss reimbursements, dept contributions, etc. The City 
needs to appropriate $372,452 of these revenues to cover unexpected specialty drug 
costs. Due to HIPPA laws we can not go into great detail detail of these expenses.

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff Recommends approval of resolution to appropriate these un-budgeted funds. 

7.c.i.



RESOLUTION ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022–2023, 
APPROPRIATING UNBUDGETED REVENUE FOR THE HEALTH INSURANCE 
FUND. 
 
 
WHEREAS, THE City of Bartlesville has unbudgeted Fund Balance in excess of 
$499,608; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville needs to appropriate $372,452 of these revenues prior 
to their expenditure; 
 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA that: 
 
 The General Services Dept (170) of the Health Insurance Fund (661) shall be 

increased as follows: 
 

 Other Improvements (51140) $ 372,452 
 

 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 7th DAY OF AUGUST, 2023. 
 
 
 
   
  Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
 City Clerk 



7.d.i.

















7.d.ii.













7.d.iii.









1 
 

Agenda Item ___ 
August 3, 2023 

Prepared by: 
Community Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Amended Development Agreement between The Voice of the Martyrs, Inc. and the City of Bartlesville 
relating to future development and the Final Plat of Voice of the Martyrs, an addition to the City of 
Bartlesville, being a part of Section 22, Township 26 North, Range 13 East, Washington County, Oklahoma. 
 
Attachments: (1)  Amended Development Agreement 2023 
   (2)  Development Agreement 2004 

 
 
 

 
 
Background.  The Voice of the Martyrs, Inc. (VOM) is a nonprofit, interdenominational missions 
organization headquartered in Bartlesville that serves persecuted Christians around the world.  They have 
offices, warehouses and trucks for receiving and shipping supplies worldwide, and some volunteer housing 
on their campus. They have developed their property over time but it was never platted.   
 
VOM applied for a plat in connection with its recent construction of a warehouse addition and a south wing 
addition to its existing administration building.  City Council approved the Final Plat of Voice of the 
Martyrs addition on March 6, 2023, with Staff’s recommended condition that VOM enter into an Amended 
Development Agreement with the City.   
 

LOCATION MAP 

7.d.iv.



2 
 

The existing 2004 Development Agreement was executed when VOM rezoned the property from 
Residential Agriculture (RA) to General Commercial (C-5), Limited Light Industrial (M-1), and Multi-
Family Residential (RM-3) / Planned Unit Development (PUD) (Case No. PC-03-17-RZ/PUD).  It required 
VOM and the City to improve Bison Road prior to issuance of a building permit for a “Phase V” of 
development that was projected to occur in 2023.   
 
However, since that time, VOM has reduced its future planned building area, and has projected it further 
into the future than originally planned.  The traffic trigger of six (6) trucks per day that was originally 
projected in 2004 to occur in 2023-2028 is now projected to occur 10 years later, in 2033-2038.  (Current 
truck traffic is estimated to be 1-3 trucks per day).  A comparison of the old Phase V plan for development, 
and VOM’s current plan is shown below. 
 

 Old “Phase V” Plan 
2003-04 

Current Plan 
2023 

Expected Completion 
Timeframe: 
 

2023-2028 2033-2038 

Warehouse 
Shipping /  
Receiving /  
Sub-Assembly Area:   
 

270,000 s.f. 138,500 s.f. 
 
Consisting of: 
   80,000 sf existing 
+ 16,750 sf (2023) 
+ 41,750 sf (2033-2038) 
 

Total Building Area 
 

424,000 s.f. 309,328 s.f. 
 

Consisting of: 
   159,628 sf existing campus 
  + 45,000 sf South Wing Annex (2023-24) 
  + 16,750 sf Warehouse Addition (2023) 
  + 35,000 sf Auditorium (2024-2028) 
  + 11,200 sf South Wing Annex (2033-38) 
  + 41,750 sf Warehouse Expansion (2033-38) 

 
Truck Traffic 
 

6-9 trucks / day 6-12 trucks / day 

Car Traffic 900-1,100 cars / day 300-350 cars / day 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 

The use of the term, “Phase V”, in the 2004 Agreement as a timing trigger for improving Bison Road is no 
longer useful given VOM’s change in long term plans.  The Amended Development Agreement updates 
and clarifies the trigger for improvement of Bison Road, reflecting VOM’s current plans. 
 
The main components of the Amended Development Agreement are: 
 

• Bison Road improvement is required by VOM and the City when EITHER 
 
(A)  a South Wing Annex or Warehouse Center Expansion are built (currently planned for 2033-

2038), OR,   
(B)  when truck traffic reaches 6 trucks per day, or motor vehicle traffic reaches 300 vehicles per 

day on Bison Road, as determined by the City.  (Current traffic is estimated to be 1-3 trucks 
per day and 150-200 cars/vehicles per day). 



3 
 

 
• VOM’s share of the road improvement cost is 75% of the surface course improvement and 50% 

of the curb and gutter improvement. 
 

The other provisions of the 2004 Development Agreement not affected by this Amended Development 
Agreement remain in place.  The major remaining provision in the 2004 agreement is the requirement 
for VOM to contribute a proportionate share of the City’s share of expense in installing a traffic signal 
at Nowata Road and Bison Road, when such signal is warranted in the future (2004 Development 
Agreement, Paragraph 3E). 
 
VOM has reviewed, approved and signed the Amended Development Agreement. 

 

 
 
III. RECOMMENDATION ACTION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Amended Development Agreement at the City Council Regular Meeting 
on August 7, 2023.    
 



Amended Development Agreement – The Voice of the Martyrs, Inc. 
Page 1 

 

AMENDED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THE VOICE OF THE MARTYRS, INC. 
1801 SE BISON ROAD 

 
 

THIS AMENDED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT made this ____ day of 
___________________, 2023, by and between The Voice of the Martyrs, Inc., an Oklahoma 
corporation, 1815 SE Bison Road, Bartlesville, Oklahoma, 74006, and their successors in 
interest and assigns, hereinafter referred to as “the Developer,” being the record owner of 
approximately 70 acres more or less of property described below, and the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma, a Municipal Corporation, 401 S. Johnstone Avenue, Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma 74003, hereinafter referred to as “the City”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Developer and the City entered into the terms of that certain Development 
Agreement dated January 23, 2004, recorded on February 3, 2004 in Book 1013, Pages 
2959-2965 of the records of the County Clerk of Washington County, Oklahoma (“the 
Development Agreement”), with respect to the development of property located in the city, 
such property more particularly described as: 
 

THE EAST 990 FEET OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER (SW/4 NE/4) AND THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER (SE/4 NE/4) OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 26 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST, 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA 

 
and hereinafter referred to as “the Property”; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Development Agreement required improvements to Bison Road prior to 
issuance of a building permit for a Phase V of the original Planned Unit Development 
(“PUD”) site development plan; and, 
 
WHEREAS, in that original PUD site development plan, the developer projected a Phase 
5 construction of a warehouse addition in the years 2023-2028 that would increase the 
square footage of the warehouse/shipping/receiving/sub-assembly area to a total of 270,000 
square feet, and a total building area of the Property to be 424,000 square feet, and the 
developer projected that truck traffic attributable to The Voice of the Martyrs would be six 
(6) to nine (9) trucks per day, and car traffic would be 900 to 1,100 vehicles per day; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the actual build out of the warehouse/shipping/receiving/sub-assembly area to 
date is approximately only 80,000 square feet and is projected at the end of 2024 to be 
96,750 square feet, and traffic is estimated currently and is projected at the end of 2024 to 
be, three (3) to five (5) trucks per day and 200-300 vehicles per day; and, 
 
WHEREAS, an approved minor amended PUD site development plan projects truck traffic 
attributable to The Voice of the Martyrs to reach six (6) trucks per day, and car traffic to 
reach over 300 vehicles per day, after a South Wing Annex of approximately 11,200 square 
feet and a Warehouse Addition of approximately 41,750 square feet are constructed in the 
2033-2038 timeframe; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Developer acknowledges obligations to perform certain required 

jntucker
Text Box
Attachment 1



Amended Development Agreement – The Voice of the Martyrs, Inc. 
Page 2 

 

improvements as a condition for acceptance and recordation of the plat of the Property as 
Voice of the Martyrs addition to the City of Bartlesville; and,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the conditions and provisions hereinafter 
set forth, the above stated parties to this agreement hereby state as follows: 
 
1. This Amended Development Agreement amends the original Development Agreement.  

Provisions of the original Development Agreement not affected by this Amended 
Development Agreement remain in force. 
 

2. The City’s Subdivision Regulations, Ordinances, Resolutions, and other Policies of the 
City are hereby incorporated by reference in this Amended Agreement as if herein fully 
set forth and shall in all respects be binding upon the Developer, except as may be 
modified by this Amended Development Agreement and the original Development 
Agreement. 

 
3. Upon execution of this Amended Development Agreement, provisions of the 

Subdivision Regulations, Ordinances, Resolutions, and other Policies of the City shall 
be implemented as set forth herein. 

 
4. The requirement to improve Bison Road as described in Paragraph 3 D of the 

Development Agreement is amended as follows:  
 

A. The road improvement shall be required prior to the issuance of a building permit 
for construction of a South Wing Annex or Warehouse Center Expansion, currently 
planned for the 2033-2038 time frame under the amended PUD Site Development 
Plan, OR, when truck traffic on Bison Road reaches six (6) trucks per day or motor 
vehicle traffic reaches more than 300 vehicles per day, as determined by the City.  
“Truck” is defined to mean tractor-trailers or a truck for which a Commercial 
Driver’s License (CDL) is required to drive. 
 

B. The road shall be improved to current applicable public standards. 
 

C. The Developer’s Share of the surface course improvement shall be 75%. 
 

D. The road improvement shall include installation of curb and gutter stormwater 
drainage along both sides of Bison Road right-of-way.  The Developer’s Share of 
this improvement shall be 50% of the cost. 
 

5. The subdivision regulation requirement of the developer to improve Bison Road prior 
to approval of the Voice of the Martyrs Final Plat, and the requirement for the developer 
to obtain a performance bond or other financial guarantee for construction of said 
improvement are waived, subject to the terms of Paragraph 4 and other terms of this 
Amended Development Agreement. 

 
6. The Developer shall be responsible to record this Amended Development Agreement 

with the County Clerk’s Office of Washington County and to furnish the City a copy of 
the Amended Development Agreement as recorded. 

 





Amended Development Agreement – The Voice of the Martyrs, Inc. 
Page 4 

 

 
 
 
CITY: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ _____________________ 
Dale Copeland, Mayor    Date 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
(City Seal) 

 



jntucker
Text Box
Attachment 2

















Amended Development Agreement – The Voice of the Martyrs, Inc. 
Page 3 

 

7. The Owners acknowledge that in the event they breach any provision of this Amended 
Development Agreement, the City may withhold approval of any or all building permit 
applications, certificates of occupancy, or other development permit or land use 
application. 

 
8. The parties to this Amended Development Agreement acknowledge that the terms 

hereof are contractual and not a mere recital.  Furthermore, the parties also acknowledge 
that this Amended Development Agreement shall be filed of record with the Washington 
County Clerk’s Office, and that it shall run with the Property, and shall bind the parties, 
their successors in interest, and all assigns. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands to this Agreement this 
____day of_______________________, 2023, in Bartlesville, Oklahoma. 
 
 
THE VOICE OF THE MARTYRS, INC.: 
by 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ ______________________ 
        Date 
Name:        
Title: 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA )  
 ) ss 
County of Washington )  
 
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, on this 
______ day of _______________, 2023, personally appeared 
______________________________________ [Name] , as 
__________________________________________________ [Title] of THE VOICE OF 
THE MARTYRS, INC. the corporation which executed the forgoing instrument, and 
acknowledged that he did sign said instrument as such officer on behalf of said corporation, 
duly authorized; that said instrument was signed as his/her free act and deed individually, 
and the free act and deed of said corporation. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEROF, I hereunto set my official signature and affixed my notarial seal 
the day and year last above written. 
 
My commission expires: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Notary Public 
 













1
Investigate programs to recruit non-traditional employees and within 
schools. 

HR 10/23 20%

2
Within six months of adoption of Strategic plan, investigate potential 
vacation buyback program.

HR 10/23 10%

3 Implement a job swap program for employees. HR 10/23 90%
4 Hold employee appreciation luncheons twice yearly. HR 07/24 20%

5
Investigate ways to implement a flex-hours or work from home program for 
applicable employees.

HR 04/24 75%

1
Develop a committee to research best practices and accreditation 
programs.

Admin 10/23 75%

2
Develop and implement a performance and reward-based evaluation 
process for general employees by July 1, 2023 with intent to negotiate this 
process for uniformed groups in the future.

HR 07/23 99%

3
Re-evaluate 311 and Enterprise Asset Management (E.A.M.) to determine 
how we can integrate these systems into our operating departments.

IT 04/24 10%

4
Revise and update our website using newest technologies and integrations 
to improve citizen satisfaction and e-gov capabilities.

CCO 10/24 15%

1
Create and publish annual digital report on overall City and departmental 
achievements, progress, and goals. Summary of report to be circulated in 
utility bill. 

Admin 09/24 5%

2
Create and distribute an annual survey to obtain citizen feedback and 
requests for all City departments. Individual departments may also be 
surveyed individually as part of a larger survey plan.

Admin 04/24 5%

3
Create and distribute survey for employees to rate their department and 
the City as an overall employer by July 1, 2023.

HR 07/23 99%

4
Develop feedback cards for golf course, library and other City services as 
appropriate.

Admin 10/23 40%

5
Continue to enhance, improve, and promote City Beat and grow 
subscription base by 10%.

CCO 04/24 100%

BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - August 2023

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department collaborations, and safety programs to 
improve workplace culture and morale.

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations for operational excellence, 
developing a performance and reward-based evaluation process, and furthering integration of IT 
systems into our operating departments.

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a standard report to citizens, 
community survey, and employee survey.

1 of 5

Agenda Item 7.e.i.



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - August 2023

1 Develop and adopt formal policies pertaining to:
a Formal debt policy based on GFOA authoritative guidance. A&F 10/23 75%

b
Formal policy requiring that utility rate studies be conducted at least every 
5 years and requiring Council to utilize periodic rate studies to adopt 
multiyear rate plans. 

A&F 10/23 50%

c
Formal capital planning policy requiring that a 5-year Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP) be prepared by Staff and adopted by the City Council 
concurrently with the budget every year. 

A&F 10/23 0%

2
Future budgets should include 5-year projections of revenue and 
expenditures for major operating funds to assist the Council and Staff in 
better planning for the future. 

A&F 07/24 0%

3

City Council will adopt a City Council Handbook that will help to guide 
current and future City Councils. City Manager will work with Mayor to 
schedule a Council workshop to discuss this item within one year of 
adoption of Strategic Plan. 

Admin 04/24 50%

1

The intent of the asset management program is to compile age, material, 
condition, and service life of the City’s infrastructure (facilities, airport, 
streets, storm drain, wastewater, water, signals, signs, etc.) into ESRI’s GIS 
software to aid in planning improvement priority and capital needs.

Eng

a
Staff will determine what items need to be tracked, what data exists, and 
what data needs to be collected

Eng 10/23 40%

b Select consultant to collect and populate data into ESRI. Eng
i Facilities, streets, storm drains, wastewater and water Eng 10/24 0%
ii Signs and signals Eng 10/25 10%

1 Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). Eng

a Complete PCI update currently under contract. Eng 04/23 100%

b
Once complete, develop several PCI score scenarios (maintain existing, 
desired PCI in 5 years and desired PCI in 10 years) with capital investment 
requirements – 6 months.

Eng 06/23 100%

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets, multi-year plans, and a 
comprehensive Council handbook.

EFFECTIVE INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK
Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure.

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI).

2 of 5



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - August 2023

1
Update the city’s comprehensive plan and other long-range plans utilizing 
accepted best practices (i.e. transportation, storm drainage, utilities, etc.). 

Comm 
Dev

a Staff will develop an RFP to select a consultant.
Comm 
Dev

06/23 100%

b Present recommendations to the Council 
Comm 
Dev

06/24 20%

2
Update zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances and codes which regulate 
private development and land use following the updated comprehensive 
land use plan. 

Comm 
Dev

06/25 0%

1
Identify economic development partners and assign City employee to act as 
economic development liaison. Liaison shall act as conduit between 
economic development partners, developer, and City departments. 

Admin 06/23 100%

2
Convene a meeting with all economic development partners to determine 
how best to support their efforts and to define the expectations for all 
parties.

Admin 12/23 100%

3 Ongoing coordination between liaison and economic development partners. Admin 50%

1 Identify community partners who employ and recruit young professionals. Admin 09/23 10%

2
Engage with community partners to learn how the City can attract young 
professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 0%

3
Examine ways to make the community more enticing for businesses and 
restaurants that attract young professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 0%

4
Work closely with BDA and Visit Bartlesville to promote their efforts and 
accomplishments 

Admin 01/24 0%

1
Coordinate a multi-cultural group to highlight the diverse cultures in our 
community.

Library 01/24 30%

a Use this group to support/identify cultural needs that are unmet.
b Partner/support this group for an annual event.

2
Allocate city resources for support group (such as facilities, properties, 
venues, etc.)

Library 01/25 0%

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young professionals and families to Bartlesville.

COMMUNITY CHARACTER
Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community.

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to optimize development.

ECONOMIC VITALITY
Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, regulations, and processes align 
with best practices and reflect the character of our community.

3 of 5



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - August 2023

1

As part of the update to the City’s comprehensive and other plans identified 
in Economic Vitality, update the Parks Masterplan to ensure that lifestyle 
options and parks and recreation systems are meeting the needs of the 
public.

Comm 
Dev

06/24 10%

2
Create a Trails/Multi-model plan that incorporates existing assets and plans 
such as bicycle plan.

CD/ 
S&T

0%

a Review, evaluate, and update the Bicycle Plan
CD/ 
S&T

04/24 0%

1
Address vandalism and criminal activities in our community spaces, 
including destruction or defacement of public restrooms, violations of park 
curfews, etc.

PW/ 
PD

a
Improve security measures at public restrooms using automatic locks 
combined with motion and smoke detectors

Pub 
Works

04/24 20%

b Police to respond to all calls at public restrooms generated by new systems PD 04/24 25%

i
Offenders, especially repeat offenders, will be prosecuted for vandalism, 
arson, trespassing, etc.

PD 04/24 0%

2
Coordinate citizen volunteer efforts to supplement our maintenance efforts 
and to improve the appearance of our City. These could include periodic 
clean up days, adopt a mile programs, adopt a path programs, etc. 

CD/ 
PW

07/23 40%

a Staff to list and prioritize possible programs.
CD/ 
PW

01/24 0%

b Adopt formal policy for selected program(s). 
CD/ 
PW

04/24 0%

c
Advertise, promote, operate, and publicly report on the success of this 
program.

CD/ 
PW

10/24 0%

3 Establish Neighborhood Watch and Sentinel Program PD 10/23 10%

4 Finalize implementation of and launch Software 311 and City App 
Comm 
Dev

04/24 10%

5
Create a list of minimum maintenance intervals for our parks and rights-of-
way. 

Pub 
Works

07/23 80%

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our parks, recreation and transportation 
systems.

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces.

4 of 5



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - August 2023

1 Child Care: Admin

a
Collaborate with local groups to help find solutions to the local child care 
shortage.

Admin 04/24 50%

b
Help advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as barriers to 
new facilities.

Admin 50%

2 Housing:
Comm 
Dev

a
Evaluate local housing supply and demand to determine gaps in local 
housing stock by price level.

Comm 
Dev

04/24 40%

3 Homelessness: PD

a
Collaborate with local groups seeking to reduce homelessness including 
“United Way” and “B the Light”.

Admin/ 
CD

04/24 25%

b
Review existing laws and enforcement policies and retrain police officers to 
better handle crimes committed by the homeless.

Admin/ 
PD

04/24 0%

c
Utilize the mental health team data from PD to understand homeless more, 
how many homeless are in Bartlesville and how they got here.

Admin/ 
PD

04/24 50%

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on existing needs and potential solution 
that address: Child Care, Housing, Homelessness, and Others to be Determined.

EMERGING ISSUES

5 of 5



Agenda Item ___ 
July 19, 2023 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the twelve months ending June 30, 2023.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for June 30, 2023 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for June 2023; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 N/A 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for June 30, 2023. 

7.f.i.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Loren Roszel
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Vice Mayor
Ward 4 - Billie Roane
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2023

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

95.0%

100.0%

105.0%

110.0%

115.0%

120.0%

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

94.0%
96.0%
98.0%
100.0%
102.0%
104.0%
106.0%
108.0%
110.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

105.0%

110.0%

115.0%

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

94.0%

96.0%

98.0%

100.0%

102.0%

104.0%

106.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 16,457,122$  16,457,122$  18,114,705$  -$                   18,114,705$  110.1% 17,520,916$  110.8%
Use Tax 400,000          400,000          1,550,537       -                     1,550,537       387.6% -                       N.A.
Gross Receipt Tax 1,451,300       1,451,300       1,626,755       -                     1,626,755       112.1% 1,495,904       120.6%
Licenses and Permits 266,700          266,700          257,340          -                     257,340          96.5% 278,241          122.3%
Intergovernmental 739,100          739,100          712,602          -                     712,602          96.4% 729,563          21.0%
Charges for Services 521,300          521,300          598,178          -                     598,178          114.7% 519,479          102.3%
Court Costs 139,800          139,800          190,255          -                     190,255          136.1% 159,035          125.8%
Police/Traffic Fines 525,000          525,000          405,378          -                     405,378          77.2% 425,822          83.0%
Parking Fines 54,800            54,800            47,915            -                     47,915            87.4% 50,455            80.4%
Other Fines 67,000            67,000            70,251            -                     70,251            104.9% 70,740            107.2%
Investment Income 100,000          100,000          958,765          -                     958,765          958.8% (63,409)           -38.1%
Miscellaneous Income 396,400          396,400          753,387          -                     753,387          190.1% 1,055,525       170.0%
Transfers In 9,170,941       9,170,941       9,170,941       -                     9,170,941       100.0% 6,146,590       126.2%

Total 30,289,463$  30,289,463$  34,457,009$  -$                   34,457,009$  113.8% 28,388,860$  102.5%

Expenditures:
General Government 8,546,967$     8,546,967$     7,816,094$     387,699$      8,203,793$     96.0% 7,572,966$     106.5%
Public Safety 15,805,931     15,805,931     15,369,204     79,270          15,448,474     97.7% 13,558,806     107.6%
Street 1,911,026       1,911,026       1,769,672       28,808          1,798,480       94.1% 1,677,741       111.9%
Culture and Recreation 3,525,900       3,525,900       3,193,066       65,091          3,258,157       92.4% 2,989,011       108.2%
Transfers Out 4,011,107       4,011,107       4,011,107       -                     4,011,107       100.0% 3,338,528       109.1%
Reserves 910,925          910,925          -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 34,711,856$  34,711,856$  32,159,143$  560,868$      32,720,011$  94.3% 29,137,052$  107.8%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 4,261,660$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 2,297,866       

Ending Fund Balance 6,559,526$    

100% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 5,499,094$     5,499,094$     5,857,374$  -$                   5,857,374$     106.5% 5,528,610$     110.9%
Investment Income -                        -                        61,147          -                      61,147             N.A. -                        0.0%
Debt Proceeds 45,000,000     45,000,000     -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,800             30,800             176,333        -                      176,333          572.5% 99,479             488.7%

Total 50,529,894$  50,529,894$  6,094,854$  -$                   6,094,854$    12.1% 5,628,089$    112.4%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,704,296$     2,704,296$     2,677,905$  16,251$        2,694,156$     99.6% 2,396,250$     97.3%
Wastewater Maint 910,135          910,135          701,491        11,717          713,208          78.4% 741,784          113.5%
BMA Expenses 28,400             28,400             27,870          -                      27,870             98.1% 13,986             N.A.
Transfers Out 1,642,574       1,642,574       1,642,574     -                      1,642,574       100.0% 1,526,012       106.0%
Reserves 83,049             83,049             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 5,368,454$    5,368,454$    5,049,840$  27,968$        5,077,808$    94.6% 4,678,032$    102.7%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 1,859,443$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 1,045,014     

Ending Fund Balance 2,904,457$  

100% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,339,739$  11,339,739$  11,528,445$  -$                    11,528,445$  101.7% 11,467,014$  109.1%
Investment Income -                       -                       81,323            -                       81,323            N.A. (8,366)             -149.9%
Debt Proceeds 7,500,000       7,500,000       -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       7,343               -                       7,343               N.A. 10,647            1054.1%

Total 18,839,739$  18,839,739$  11,617,111$  -$                    11,617,111$  61.7% 11,469,295$  109.0%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 3,590,859$     3,590,859$     3,445,061$     37,882$         3,482,943$     97.0% 3,089,716$     111.1%
Water Administration 403,207          403,207          369,593          18,383            387,976          96.2% 352,266          104.3%
Water Distribution 1,941,232       1,941,232       1,682,658       78,755            1,761,413       90.7% 1,524,666       113.0%
BMA Expenses 10,447,970     10,447,970     6,178,606       499,490         6,678,096       63.9% 1,471,015       49.3%
Transfers Out 2,569,382       2,569,382       2,569,382       -                       2,569,382       100.0% 2,380,530       106.3%
Reserves 174,039          174,039          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 19,126,689$  19,126,689$  14,245,300$  634,510$       14,879,810$  77.8% 8,818,193$    91.0%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 9,871,860$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (2,628,189)      

Ending Fund Balance 7,243,671$    

100% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 5,614,957$     5,614,957$     5,781,146$       -$                   5,781,146$     103.0% 5,238,230$     119.2%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 181,103          45,669            166,394             -                     166,394          91.9% 170,596          122.3%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       0.0%

Total 5,796,060$    5,660,626$    5,947,540$       -$                   5,947,540$    102.6% 5,408,826$    118.7%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,458,313$     3,458,313$     3,248,713$       16,296$        3,265,009$     94.4% 3,077,216$     104.6%
Transfers Out 2,647,446       2,647,446       2,647,446         -                     2,647,446       100.0% 2,259,180       128.3%
Reserves 118,724          118,724          -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,224,483$    6,224,483$    5,896,159$       16,296$        5,912,455$    95.0% 5,336,396$    113.5%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 271,101$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 51,381               

Ending Fund Balance 322,482$          

100% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,830,242     2,107,405    115%
E-911 Fund 1,207,233     1,276,075    106%
Special Library Fund 88,000          152,300       173%
Special Museum Fund -                     39,589          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund 504,038        460,959       91%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     20,477          N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund 106,006        86,198          81%
Golf Course Memorial Fund -                     45,558          N/A
CDBG-COVID -                     88,007          N/A
ARPA 3,186,219     3,186,294    100%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     32,500          N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 3,000            3,155            105%

Debt Service Fund 4,156,550     4,319,963    104%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,095,683     3,770,810    122%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     57,502          N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     35,103          N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 11,400          53,389          468%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     4,045            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund 196,000        227,068       116%
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 543,441        556,721       102%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 49,871          50,084          100%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 60,921          61,130          100%
Municipal Airport Operating 391,172        668,573       171%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 100,287        120,568       120%
Health Insurance Fund 3,781,152     4,280,760    113%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          82,936          111%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,722,643     1,722,643    100%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 7,296,227     7,424,209    102%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     351               N/A

100% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 4,536,236     1,378,267    30%
E-911 Fund 1,228,358     1,103,214    90%
Special Library Fund 238,968        175,765        74%
Special Museum Fund 41,500           30,335          73%
Municipal Airport Fund 750,981        691,507        92%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 583,426        169,238        29%
Restricted Revenue Fund 352,376        50,835          14%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 34,307           34,216          100%
CDBG-COVID 501,706        501,706        100%
ARPA 3,609,713     3,609,713    100%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund 27,653           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 12,147           1,334            11%

Debt Service Fund 4,156,550     3,977,475    96%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 6,074,933     3,952,162    65%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 97,435           97,435          100%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 784,684        242,509        31%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 75,594           1,780            2%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 51,963           -                     0%
Community Development Block Grant Fund 501,706        238,134        47%
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund 2,636             -                     0%
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund 22,372           22,372          100%
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 18,390           15,853          86%
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 32,031           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 410,612        157,008        38%
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 678,315        328,480        48%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 385,860        44,400          12%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 2,109,080     552,586        26%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 9,345,050     4,492,865    48%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 646,520        638,396        99%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 73,088           52,380          72%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 92,260           63,854          69%
Municipal Airport Operating 625,990        612,553        98%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        172,025        40%
Health Insurance Fund 4,527,661     4,527,661    100%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 443,559        97,339          22%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 10,211,008   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 9,439,365     4,224,344    45%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,185             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

100% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 2,976,150                 729,138        3,705,288     
E-911 Fund 42,136                       172,861        214,997        
Special Library Fund 300,317                    (9,347)           290,970        
Special Museum Fund 129,805                    9,254            139,059        
Municipal Airport Fund 258,862                    (178,160)      80,702           
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 611,905                    (148,761)      463,144        
Restricted Revenue Fund 371,829                    37,490          409,319        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 31,449                       14,442          45,891           
CDBG-COVID (71,679)                     71,679          -                     
ARPA 2,186,371                 (423,419)      1,762,952     
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619                         -                     7,619             
Neighborhood Park Fund 27,722                       32,500          60,222           
Cemetery Care Fund 8,234                         1,821            10,055           

Debt Service Fund 3,383,622                 342,488        3,726,110     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,179,987                 557,125        3,737,112     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 125,314                    37,226          162,540        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 805,587                    35,103          840,690        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 74,009                       51,609          125,618        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 52,981                       4,045            57,026           
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund 22,372                       (22,372)         -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 7,686                         -                     7,686             
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,886                         -                     3,886             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 12,444                       -                     12,444           
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 72,338                       (15,853)         56,485           
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 52,547                       -                     52,547           
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 46,204                       -                     46,204           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 152,711                    (152,711)      -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 657,231                    (329,800)      327,431        
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 397,717                    -                     397,717        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 1,079,080                 (552,586)      526,494        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 9,370,025                 (2,604,941)   6,765,084     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 56,999                       (37,623)         19,376           
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 23,650                       (1,820)           21,830           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 14,708                       8,854            23,562           
Municipal Airport Operating 246,207                    62,859          309,066        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 248,341                    (51,457)         196,884        
Health Insurance Fund 291,251                    (245,687)      45,564           
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 477,623                    32,244          509,867        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 10,211,008               1,722,643    11,933,651   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 12,762,925               4,305,660    17,068,585   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 7,813                         351               8,164             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

100% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item 7.g.i.



Agenda Item #___ 
8/3/2023 

Prepared by Steve Roper 
      Engineering Department 

 
 
 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-003 for the Asphalt Rehabilitation: 
Delaware Avenue and Clear Creek Loop Project. 
 

B. ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Construction Plans 

 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 
 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

This project is a combination of Delaware Avenue Mill/Overlay, a priority project included in the 
2022 General Obligation Bond (GO Bond), and Clear Creek Loop, a discretionary project 
included in the 2022 GO Bond.  The project consists of an asphalt rehabilitation of Delaware 
Avenue from Hillcrest Ave. north to 5th Street and Clear Creek Loop.  The project will consist of 
milling and removing the surface of both streets and laying new 2” thick asphalt overlay.  All 
items of work were included in the Base Bid with no Bid Alternates.  

 
B.  COMMENTS: 

In addition to advertising in the local newspaper, Dodge Reports, E-Plan Bidding, and Southwest 
Construction News, three (3) contractors obtained copies of the bid documents and three (3) 
contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting.  Three (3) contractors submitted a bid.  The 
base bids were as follows: 

 

    Paragon Contractors, LLC (Tulsa, OK)   $793,089.48 

    KSL Dirtworks, LLC (Bartlesville, OK)   $588,208.32 

Brent Bell Construction (Nowata, OK)   $676,407.52 

 

   

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line-item prices, and arithmetic.  Each bid 
has all of the necessary components.  The low bid submitted was not compliant with bidding 
requirements and included subcontracting more than the maximum allowable 40% of the 
contract and is recommended to be rejected.  Minor mathematical errors were found in the next 
lowest bid, but the errors did not change the order of the bids.    

 8.



 

C.  BUDGET AMOUNT: 

$655,000.00 was originally budgeted for the project in the 2022 GO Bond.  The project was 
designed using City staff, leaving the entire $655,000.00 for the construction portion of the 
project.  The lowest compliant bid by Brent Bell Construction is $21, 407.52 over the available 
GO Bond budget.  The project budget will be supplemented with anticipated surplus funds from 
the Crestland Concrete Rehab, also funded from the 2022 GO Bond. 

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Brent Bell Construction is a construction firm specializing in asphalt roadway projects.  They 
have completed projects successfully for the City of Bartlesville in the past and have provided 
information confirming they have the bonding capacity and technical expertise to complete this 
project. 

Staff recommends awarding the base bid to Brent Bell Construction in the amount of 
$676,407.52.   

 
 
 
              
                        Council Member      Date 
 

/s/ Billie Roane August 3, 2023



PAY 
ITEM

ODOT 
SPEC DESCRIPTION NOTES UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE ITEM COST UNIT PRICE ITEM COST UNIT PRICE ITEM COST UNIT PRICE ITEM COST UNIT PRICE ITEM COST

1 201(B) SELECTIVE CLEARING 1 LSUM 1.00               $4,037.60 $4,037.60 $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $6,988.14 $6,988.14 $4,608.58 $4,608.58 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
2 202(A) UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION 2, 3, 4, 27 CY 120.00           $24.53 $2,943.60 $75.00 $9,000.00 $73.25 $8,790.00 $57.59 $6,911.20 $40.00 $4,800.00
3 202(D) UNCLASSIFIED BORROW 2 CY 50.00             $44.69 $2,234.50 $70.00 $3,500.00 $116.75 $5,837.50 $77.15 $3,857.33 $15.00 $750.00
4 230(A) SOLID SLAB SODDING R-6, R-7, 5 SY 477.00           $8.79 $4,192.83 $8.00 $3,816.00 $7.56 $3,606.12 $8.12 $3,871.65 $10.00 $4,770.00
5 411(C) SUPERPAVE, TYPE S4 (PG64-22OK) R-24,R-26, 6 TON 1,984.00       $115.84 $229,826.56 $109.00 $216,256.00 $112.24 $222,684.16 $112.36 $222,922.24 $110.00 $218,240.00
6 412.00   COLD MILLING PAVEMENT 7, 8 SY 17,715.00     $3.38 $59,876.70 $3.00 $53,145.00 $3.75 $66,431.25 $3.38 $59,817.65 $4.00 $70,860.00
7 414(E) FULL DEPTH P.C.C. PATCH 9, 10, 11 SY 290.00           $80.23 $23,266.70 $100.00 $29,000.00 $132.89 $38,538.10 $104.37 $30,268.27 $120.00 $34,800.00
8 414(G) P.C. CONCRETE FOR PAVEMENT CY 56.00             $190.34 $10,659.04 $204.00 $11,424.00 $398.87 $22,336.72 $264.40 $14,806.59 $40.00 $2,240.00
9 609(B) COMBINED CURB AND GUTTER 12, 28 LF 398.00           $47.31 $18,829.38 $30.60 $12,178.80 $43.75 $17,412.50 $40.55 $16,140.23 $35.00 $13,930.00

10 610(A) CONCRETE SIDEWALK SY 186.00           $85.00 $15,810.00 $102.00 $18,972.00 $99.30 $18,469.80 $95.43 $17,750.60 $85.00 $15,810.00
11 610(B) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY SY 23.00             $110.22 $2,535.06 $137.70 $3,167.10 $250.77 $5,767.71 $166.23 $3,823.29 $125.00 $2,875.00
12 610(I) TACTILE WARNING DEVICE SF 296.00           $27.92 $8,264.32 $17.34 $5,132.64 $31.38 $9,288.48 $25.55 $7,561.81 $35.00 $10,360.00
13 612(A) MANHOLE ADJUST TO GRADE EA 1.00               $1,153.60 $1,153.60 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,527.80 $1,527.80 $1,560.47 $1,560.47 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
14 612(C) INLET ADJUST TO GRADE EA 1.00               $2,307.20 $2,307.20 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,527.80 $1,527.80 $2,278.33 $2,278.33 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
15 612(E) VALVE BOX ADJUST TO GRADE EA 20.00             $576.80 $11,536.00 $400.00 $8,000.00 $547.37 $10,947.40 $508.06 $10,161.13 $600.00 $12,000.00
16 619(B) REMOVAL OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT R-40, 9 SY 902.00           $9.60 $8,659.20 $8.00 $7,216.00 $20.56 $18,545.12 $12.72 $11,473.44 $12.50 $11,275.00
17 619(B) REMOVAL OF CURB AND GUTTER R-40, 9, 12 LF 398.00           $6.82 $2,714.36 $20.40 $8,119.20 $24.92 $9,918.16 $17.38 $6,917.24 $15.00 $5,970.00
18 619(B) REMOVAL OF RAILROAD 13, 14, 15, 16 LF 75.00             $103.06 $7,729.50 $150.00 $11,250.00 $188.96 $14,172.00 $147.34 $11,050.50 $100.00 $7,500.00
19 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT R-40, 9, 17 SY 582.00           $9.26 $5,389.32 $36.72 $21,371.04 $40.84 $23,768.88 $28.94 $16,843.08 $25.00 $14,550.00
20 641.00   MOBILIZATION LSUM 1.00               $12,920.32 $12,920.32 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $68,264.98 $68,264.98 $38,728.43 $38,728.43 $50,000.00 $50,000.00
21 642.00   CONSTRUCTION STAKING LEVEL II LSUM 1.00               $1,153.60 $1,153.60 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,235.49 $5,235.49 $3,963.03 $3,963.03 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
22 850(A) STOP SIGN 18 EA 1.00               $865.20 $865.20 $765.00 $765.00 $581.72 $581.72 $737.31 $737.31 $200.00 $200.00
23 856(A) TRAFFIC STRIPE MULTI-POLYMER 4-INCH WIDE TC-17 LF 3,662.00       $2.89 $10,583.18 $2.55 $9,338.10 $2.33 $8,532.46 $2.59 $9,484.58 $2.00 $7,324.00
24 856(A) TRAFFIC STRIPE MULTI-POLYMER 24-INCH WIDE 19 LF 30.00             $23.07 $692.10 $20.40 $612.00 $29.09 $872.70 $24.19 $725.60 $45.00 $1,350.00
25 856(B) TRAFFIC STRIPE MULTIPOLYMER SYMBOLS 20 EA 3.00               $547.96 $1,643.88 $484.50 $1,453.50 $581.72 $1,745.16 $538.06 $1,614.18 $400.00 $1,200.00
26 880(J) COSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL TC-33, 21 LSUM 1.00               $5,191.20 $5,191.20 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $13,379.59 $13,379.59 $8,856.93 $8,856.93 $25,000.00 $25,000.00
27 SPECIAL FULL DEPTH A.C. PATCH 6, 9, 26, 10 SY 804.00           $79.96 $64,287.84 $95.45 $76,741.80 $69.69 $56,030.76 $81.70 $65,686.80 $100.00 $80,400.00
28 SPECIAL CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER 9, 10, 11 SY 395.00           $85.37 $33,721.15 $110.00 $43,450.00 $105.31 $41,597.45 $100.23 $39,589.53 $125.00 $49,375.00
29 SPECIAL ADA RAMP 22 EA 37.00             $396.22 $14,660.14 $1,200.00 $44,400.00 $1,449.53 $53,632.61 $1,015.25 $37,564.25 $1,900.00 $70,300.00
30 SPECIAL TRENCH DRAIN 24, 25 LF 311.00           $33.84 $10,524.24 $37.94 $11,799.34 $85.72 $26,658.92 $52.50 $16,327.50 $25.00 $7,775.00
31 SPECIAL ENGINEER'S ALLOWANCE 23 EA 1.00               $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Bell Construction

$588,208.32 $676,407.52

KSL Dirtworks Paragon

$793,089.48

Average Bid

$685,901.77

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

$747,154.00

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
PAY QUANTITIES

DELAWARE AVE FROM HILLCREST AVE TO 5TH STREET AND CLEAR CREEK LOOP

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST































9.









































































































 10.







11.




	City Council Agenda August 7, 2023
	Agenda Item 7.a.i. City Council Minutes July 3, 2023
	Agenda Item 7.a.ii. City Council Minutes July 24, 2023
	Agenda Item 7.b.i. Appointment of Jennifer Galvin to Park Board
	Agenda Item 7.b.ii. Mark Cough - LIBRARY TRUST AUTHORITY APPOINTMENT
	Agenda Item 7.b.iii. Donna Keffer Appointment CCTA TCUS Mgmt Committee
	Agenda Item 7.c.i. Resolution health Ins fund 22-23
	health Ins fund 22-23 Council Cover Letter Template
	Cip Sales Tax fund 23-24 Council Cover Letter Template
	Memorial fund 23-24 Council Cover Letter Template
	Memorial fund 22-23 Council Cover Letter Template



	Health Insurance Fund Unbudgeted Rev Reso 2023

	Agenda Item 7.d.i. DeVries Hangar Agreement
	Agenda Item 7.d.ii.  Library item- Revistas
	Agenda Item 7.d.iii. INCOG-City Agreement
	Agenda Item 7.d.iv. Council Memo Voice of the Martyrs Amended Development Agreement w ATTACHMENTS
	Council Memo Voice of the Martyrs Amended Development Agreement w ATTACHMENTS
	Council Memo Voice of the Martyrs Amended Development Agreement
	DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 2004 VOICE OF THE MARTYRS

	DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AMENDED_VOICE OF THE MARTYRS

	Agenda item 7.d.v. Janitorial Service for City Hall and the Library
	Agenda Item 7.e.i. Bartlesville NEXT Report - Aug 2023
	Aug 23

	Agenda Item 7.f.i. June 2023 Financials
	June 2023 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P12 June 2023  Financials
	P12 June 2023  Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 7.g.i. Invitation for bids-signed
	Agenda Item 8. Bid Review with Support
	BID REVIEW_Delaware and Clear Creek asphalt paving
	Bid Summary
	0_BID SET DELAWARE AVE AND CLEAR CREEK

	Agenda Item 9. IAFF and City Collective Bargaining Agreement FY 23-24
	Agenda Item 10. ReName Robinwoodk Park Soccer Fields to Joe Bares Soccer Complex
	Agenda Item 11. Planning Commission Comprehensive Plan Committee City Council Appointments



